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Elsing

Woolford vicinity
c. 1725-50, c. 1825
Private

Built on the south shore of Church Creek a short distance west of the historic Trinity
Church is a story-and-a-half, part brick, part frame dwelling dating from the eighteenth
and nineteenth centuries. The earliest portions of the house are framed by a pair of
brick chimneys; the western half was clearly erected during the second quarter of the
eighteenth century, while the eastern half, executed in timber frame sheathed with beaded
weatherboards, is datable to the first quarter of the nineteenth century. A third section of
the story-and-a-half main block was added during the early to mid nineteenth century.
Twentieth century modifications include a rear kitchen wing. The house is one of oldest
surviving dwellings remaining on the south shore of Church Creek.

While the eighteenth century land ownership of this property is undocumented,
the property was for a long time part of the land holdings of John Crawford (1778-1852)
and his son William Wallace Crawford (1813-1886). John Crawford is found in the 1850
U.S. Census as a very wealthy Dorchester farmer with $10,000 in real estate. His son,
William Wallace Crawford, inherited the farm from his father, and he is designated as a
in the census as a 37-year old merchant and is grouped in the census with his wife Hester.
Also in their household was a John Richardson, aged 18, and John and Ally Cornish,
negro laborers. Twenty two years later, William W. Crawford is designated on the Lake,
Griffing, and Stevenson atlas printed in 1877, and he is included in the atlas patron list as

a “farmer,” aged 64. The farm bordering the county road and Church Creek was sold by
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Frederick Crawford to Julian Woolford in 1912, who transferred it five years later to
Joseph W. Bradshaw. Later in the mid twentieth century it was held by Etta B. Bramble
and her husband Laird V. Bramble, and after 1955, by the Vestry of Trinity Church,
which used it as a rectory. The Vestry of Trinity Church and Dorchester Parish held title

to the property until 1964 when it was transferred to Milton A. Noon, Jr.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Elsing
other John Crawford House

2. Location

street and number 1654 Taylor’s Island Road not for publication
city, town Cambridge vicinity
county Dorchester

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owner

name Eleanor N. Triplett
street and number 464 Holly Farms Road telephone
city, town Severna Park state MD zipcode 21146

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Dorchester County Clerk of Court liber MLB 760 folio 343
city, town Cambridge taxmap 51 tax parcel 105 tax {D number 9-198296

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other.

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
district public agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing
X__building(s) x__private commerce/trade recreation/culture 1 buildings

structure both defense religion sites

site x__domestic social structures

object education transportation objects
funerary work in progress 1 Total
government unknown
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory




7. Description Inventory No. D-37

Condition
___excellent ___ deteriorated
x__good ___ruins
__ fair ___ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

The property historically known as Elsing is improved by a story-and-a-half part brick, part frame
house largely dating from the period between 1725 and 1830. Situated near the head of Church Creek,
the property is accessed by land with an address of 1654 Taylor’s Island Road in Church Creek Election
District, Dorchester County, Maryland. The brick section, although modified during the nineteenth
century, appears to date to the second quarter of the eighteenth century, while a north end addition to
the brick section was erected during the early nineteenth century. A rear one-and-a-half story kitchen
wing was buiit during the early to mid twentieth century. The house is currently under another wave of
restoration and rehabilitation.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

The story-and-a-half , eighteenth century two-bay brick section is completely stuccoed, and a watertable
does define the base of the two-room structure. The front (east) wall of the brick section is pierced by
a pair of six-over-six sash windows. The front door as well as two additional six-over-six sash
windows define the frame portion of the adjacent frame addition. A final room on the north end of the
house was also added during the early nineteenth century. Supported on a low brick foundation, the
historic sections are covered by a steeply pitched roof of asphalt shingles. The oldest portions of the
house, the eighteenth century section, and the early nineteenth century addition, are framed by large
interior end brick chimneys finished with corbelled caps. Defining the roof slope of the entire length of
the house are four gable roofed dormers fitted with six-over-six sash windows and diagonal beaded
board sides. The base of the roof is finished with a boxed cornice, and a gable roofed entry porch
shelters the front door.

The south gable end of the brick section is stuccoed wall surface with a two-course beltcourse
stretching across the mid-point of the wall. Two small windows light the upper floor, and the gable end
is finished with a plain bargeboard.

The west (rear) wall of the eighteenth century section is fully covered by the mid twentieth century
story-and-a-half kitchen wing, which is detailed in a manner similar to the rest of the house with a
steeply pitched roof and gable roofed dormers with diagonal board sides. A single flue brick stack rises
against the gable end, which is pierced by a single door opening and small attic windows.

The interiors have been opened up in the nineteenth century sections in the process of renovation and
restoration, clearly repairing rotten framing members. A straight run staircase finished with early
nineteenth century flat panels and a four-panel closet door rises against the gable end of the eighteenth
century section. A six-panel door on the west wall of the eighteenth century section opens into the front
room which has a corner fireplace framed by an early nineteenth century mantel and early nineteenth
century chair rail. A middle raised-panel partition in this room may date to the mid eighteenth century,
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Name Elsing
Continuation Sheet

Number _7 _Page 1

and it is the partition wall that separates the front room from the kitchen. The early nineteenth century
frame section retains portions of period finishes including vertical beaded board sheathing and a portion
of a Federal mantel in the middle room. A layer of exterior beaded weatherboards is exposed in places
between the two early nineteenth century sections, thereby indicating that the last section was added

slightly later.




8. Significance Inventory No. D-37

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below

__1600-1699 __agriculture ___economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts

x_ 1700-1799 __ archeology ___education ___industry ___ phitosophy

x 1800-1899 x  architecture ___engineering ___invention ___politics/government

1900-1999 __art entertainment/ __ landscape architecture  religion

_2000- __commerce recreation __law ___science
__ communications __ethnic heritage __literature ___ social history
__community planning __ exploration/ ___ maritime history __ transportation
___conservation settlement ___ military __ other:

Specific dates Architect/Builder

Construction dates

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY

Built on the south shore of Church Creek a short distance west of historic Trinity Church, is a story-
and-half, part brick, part frame dwelling dating from the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. The
earlier portions dwelling are framed by a pair of brick chimneys; the western half was clearly erected
during the second quarter of the eighteenth century, while the eastern half, executed in timber frame, is
datable to the first quarter of the nineteenth century. A third section in the story-and-a-half dwelling
was added during the early to mid nineteenth century. Twentieth-century modifications include a rear
kitchen wing. The house is one of the oldest surviving dwellings remaining on the southern shore of
Church Creek.

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

While the eighteenth century land ownership of this property is still undocumented, the property was
for a long time part of the land holdings of John Crawford (1778-1852) and his son William Wallace
Crawford (1813-1886). John Crawford is found in the 1850 U.S. Census as a very wealthy Dorchester
County farmer with $10,000 worth of real estate. His son, William Wallace Crawford is designated as a
37-year old merchant and is grouped in the census with his wife Hester. Also in their household was a
John Richardson, aged 18, and John and Ally Cornish, negro laborers.! Twenty two years later, William
W. Crawford is designated at this location on the Lake, Griffing, and Stevenson atlas map printed in
1877, and he is included in the patron list as a “farmer,” aged 64. The farm bordering the county road
and Church Creek was sold by Frederick Crawford to Julian Woolford in 1912,> who sold it five years
later to Joseph W. Bradshaw.” Later in the mid twentieth century it was held by Etta B. Bramble and her
husband Laird V. Bramble, and after 1955 by the Vestry of Trinity Church, which used the house as a

! Seventh Census of the United States, 1850, Dorchester County Population Schedule, ancestry.com.
2 Dorchester County Land Record, WLR 5/269, 25 November 1912, Dorchester County Courthouse.
? Dorchester County Land Record, WHM 3/723, 1§ September 1917, Dorchester County Courthouse.
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Continuation Sheet

Number _8 Page 1

home for the rector.* The Vestry of Trinity Church and Dorchester Parish held title to the property until
1964 when it was transferred to Milton A. Noon, Jr.

. * Dorchester County Land Record, 96/518, 13 June 1955, Dorchester County Courthouse.
* Dorchester County Land Record, PLC 140/276, 23 October 1964, Dorchester County Courthouse.




Maryland Historical Trust
MarYIand Inventory of Inventory No. D-37
Historic Properties Form

Name Elsing
Continuation Sheet

Number _8 Page 2

Elsing
1654 Taylor’s Island Road
Church Creek vicinity, Dorchester County, Maryland

Map 51, Parcel 105

MLB 760/343 Carolyn Noon LeCompte and Eleanor Noon Triplett
to

9.26.2006 Eleanor Noon Triplett

326/371 Carolyn Noon LeCompte, Personal Representative of

Milton A. Noon, Jr.

to
9.28.1995 Carolyn Noon LeCompte and Eleanor Noon Triplett
PLC 140/276 Vestry of Dorchester Parish
to
10.23.1964 Milton A. Noon, Jr. and Lucille B. Noon, City of New Stanton, PA.

$25,700 all that tract or parcel of land situate lying and being on the North
side of the State Road leading from Cambridge to Taylor’s Island, near the
Village of Woolford, and which according to a Certificate of Survey, dated
October 15, 1964, by J. R. McCrone, Jr. Inc.,

19.30 acres
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96/518 Bernice Chrysler Garbish, Edgar William Garbish,
to
6.13.1955 Vestry of Trinity Church
15 acres
RSM 42/321 J. Will Bradshaw, widower, et al. (Mary B. Spicer, and L. Leon Spicer, her

husband, Whereas by the codicil Number Two of the Last Will and Testament
of Joseph W. Bradshaw, RPS 2/399

to
2.10.1941 Etta B. Bramble and Laird V. Bramble

All that tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in Church Creek Election
District, near the village of Woolford, and that part of the home farm of the
late William F. Crawford which lies to the north of the county road leading
from Church Creek to Woolfords and bounded on the south by the county

road aforesaid, on the north by Church Creek, a branch of the Little Choptank
River, on the East by the lands of the late Mrs. Sallie B. Dorsey and on the
west by the lands of the late D. W. Newbury, being especially the same
property which was conveyed to Frederick Crawford by Elizabeth Fooks and
others, dated May 23" 1893 and recorded in CL 17/466

Dorchester County

Will Book

RSM 42/321 Last Will and Testament of Joseph W. Bradshaw
to

Will Bradshaw
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WHM 3/723 Julian R. Woolford, widower, Norfolk,Va.
to
9.18.1917 Joseph W. Bradshaw
WLR 5/269 Frederick Crawford
to
11.25.1912 Julian Woolford
CL 17/466 Elizabeth B. Fooks and Stephen J. Fooks, John M. Crawford, and Ida Crawfor

his wife, all of Baltimore City, Annie M. Graham, and James E. Graham of
Caroline County, heirs at law of William W. Crawford

to
5.23.1893 Frederick Crawford
$1216.26 “home farm of William W. Crawford”
all that tract or parcel of land situate in Church Creek Election District,
and near the village of Woolford, Being all that part of the home farm of

William W. Crawford, deceased, lying to the north of the county road
Leading from Church Creek to Woolford
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Dorchester County

Will Book
THH 1/82 Last Will and Testament of John Crawford

To, son William W. Crawford
Written
7.5.1842 ...my dwelling plantation on which I now reside which I purchased of
Proved Roger Jones known by the name of “Jones Range” containing about 100
9.6.1852 acres, I do also give and devise unto him my said son William W. Crawford

all that tract or parcel of land that I bought of Thomas Jones, “White Marsh”
called Delia’s Range...5 acres

William Wallace Crawford b. 10.25.1813,d. 2.28.1886

John Crawford (1778-1852)




9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. D-37

Dorchester County Land Records, various volumes, Dorchester County Courthouse

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 2.10 acres
Acreage of historical setting
Quadrangle name Church Creek Quadrangle Quadrangle scale: 1:24.000
Verbal boundary description and justification
The metes and bounds of this property are coincidental with the current boundary of the lot.
11. Form Prepared by
nameltitie Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian
organization Chesapeake Country Heritage & Preservation date 10.15.2012
street & number Cedar Hill, P. O. Box 5 telephone  410-651-1094
city or town Westover state Maryland 21871

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature

to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to; Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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(Check One)

CONDITION Excellent E‘ Good Fair Deteriorated Ruins -Unexposed
(Check One) (Check One)
g’ Altered Unclitered Moved m Ol'igintﬂ Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 24D ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Along one of the small coves of Church Creek stands
a house called Elsing, formerly known as (0ld House on
! Church Creek. It is a six bay long structure composed of
one third brick and the other two thirds of frame. Along
its steeply pitched roof are four dormers and onto the
back of the brick portion a recent addition was constructed.
+ The earliest portion of the house is the brick west
end. It is two bays long and two deep and has been stuccoed
| to deter the deterioration of the brick. 1In its gable are
two small windows and a belt course at floor level. From
the apex of the steep roof rises a tall chimney. Its |
facade now has two windows but it originally had a door
and window like its back wall. There apparently was glazed
Flemish bond brickwork on this side, although the stucco
now conceals it. Its floor plan now consists of two rooms
with diagonal fireplaces and a vertical board partition
" similar to the second story partitions in Carthegena.
When the recent restoration was being undertaken, floor
tiles were found beneath the wood framed floor which are
similar in size and appearance to Trinity Church floor.
These tiles were either the original floors or the hearth(s).
In all likelyhood, the building was constructed around
1700 as a single room with very large fireplace and was
later remodeled, probably when the extensions were con-
structed.
The wing consists of a stair hall and living room
and a kitchen wing which i1s now a den. From evidence in
the attic and the bedroom floor, the den was originally
narrower and lower, similar to most kitchen wings in the
county. A large brick chimney serves the fireplace in
both living room and den. Most of the woodwork through-
out the house appears to date from the time the house
received its extension. The one exception may be the panel-
ing between the two smaller rooms of thebrick part.

338

SNOILJ3NY¥YL1SNI



?

INS T UCTIONS

S EE

...................................

] Pre-Columbian 16th Century B 18th Century 20th Century 1
15th Century 8 17th Century DS 19th Century
SPECIFIC DATEI(S) (If Applicable and Know:n)_ _ _ _ . —
AREAS OF s,f;m,.-:“qclg (Check One or More as Appropriate)
Abor iginal Education Political Urban Planning
Prehistoric Engineering B Religion/Phi. Other (Specity)
Historic Industry losophy —_— —_——
Agriculture [C1 Invention ] Science —e
B Architecture Londscape Sculpture —_—
Art Architecture [ Social/Humen- —_
Commerce Literature itarian —
Communications ] Military Theater
Conservetion Music Transportation

— ——

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The house 1is a very handsome and well maintained
structure. It is at least as early as the second quarter
of the 18th century with the wing being added around 1800.
Possibly the brick section dates back into the 17th century
in which case it is the earliest house thus far located
in Dorchester County. Because of the scarcity of early
dwellings in Dorset, this house is one of the most impor-
tant surviving dwellings.

Elsing was patented to James Busick in 1671. James
Busick mentioned in his will of “749 that the property on
which Trinity Church was built was indeed theirs for as
long, as it is used for religious purposes.
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“T Forman, H. C., Early Manor and Plantation Houses of

Maryland, '934, p. 70,
Laskowski Papers, 1955, p. 213.
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APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:
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?Acreage Justification:

. District 9, Map 51, p. 105
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NAME AND TITLE:

~ Michael Bourne, Architectural Consultant
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Maryland Historical Trust
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STREET AND NUMBER:

Shaw House, 21 State Circle

CITY OR TOWN: STATE
e aryland 21407

~“Jstate Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National State Local
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